

Temporomandibular (Jaw) Joint Disorders

Patient Information

Maxillo-Facial Unit & Physiotherapy Service



The Patient Information Leaflets page on the Trust website is available on the link: https://www.wwl.nhs.uk/patient-information-leaflets or scan the QR code.

Author ID: RN/LT Leaflet Ref: MX 009 Version: 7

Leaflet title: Temporomandibular (Jaw) Joint Problems

Last review: October 2022 Expiry Date: October 2024



What is the temporomandibular (jaw) joint (TMJ)?

The TMJ is the joint between the lower jaw and the skull, which is situated just in front of the ear canal. The joint includes a cartilage disc, which separates the jaw from the skull. There are also four powerful chewing muscles, which move the jaw when speaking or chewing.

What is temporomandibular (jaw) joint dysfunction (TMD)?

This is a common group of conditions associated with the chewing system. Problems can affect one or both jaw joints, chewing muscles or teeth. The symptoms from these conditions vary from person to person.

What are the symptoms?

Common symptoms include:

- Jaw and face pain
- Jaw joint noise: such as clicking, crunching, grating or popping
- Earache
- Headache
- Limited mouth opening
- Jaw locking
- Pain radiating along the cheek bone or down the neck

Most jaw joint problems are made worse by chewing and at times of stress.

Is this condition serious?

Although the symptoms of TMD can be worrying, most go away on their own, and typically last a few months. If you have had TMD it does not mean you will get arthritis in your jaw joints.

What causes it?

Temporomandibular (jaw joint) dysfunction can be associated with many things including: trauma, for example:

- A knock to face or jaw
- Unexpected wide mouth opening as in very wide yawn
- Biting down on something hard
- Tooth grinding (bruxism) and tooth clenching, often at night
- Stress
- Nail biting

• Uneven bite or altered chewing pattern to avoid a sore tooth

Sometimes no obvious cause can be found but symptoms may be associated with other stress related disorders such as tension and headaches.

What is happening to cause the symptoms?

- Pain can be caused by the muscles in and around the joint tightening up and also causing limited mouth opening.
- Joint noise occurs if the cartilage disc is stretched out of its normal position and moves abnormally during jaw movements.
- The noise sounds louder to the patient as the joint is just in front of the ear.
- Occasionally the cartilage disc can slip forward in the joint and not return to its normal position causing locking of the joint and limited mouth opening.

What are the treatments?

Most TMD will improve spontaneously over a few months. Treatments vary depending on whether you are suffering from muscle pain, derangement of the joint itself or a combination of both. Generally treatment is aimed at relaxing the jaw muscles allowing the cartilage disc to return to a normal position.

Effective treatments include:

- Reassurance Once it has been explained that the condition usually resolves after a period of time, many patients do not seek further treatment.
- A soft diet that requires little chewing, allowing over-worked muscles to rest.
- Painkillers Anti-inflammatory medication such as Ibuprofen, diclofenac or ™Voltarol can reduce both pain and inflammation within the joint. In addition, paracetamol and ™Co-Codamol can also be recommended.
- Local heat for example a hot water bottle wrapped in a towel and applied to the side of the face will increase blood flow in the muscles and help them to relax.
- Try to eliminate any habits such as grinding, clenching or chewing fingernails. This may
 be difficult, as some of these occur when you are asleep or subconsciously when you
 may not be aware of them.
- Resting the jaw as much as possible and avoid yawning wide by supporting the jaw with the palm of the hand.
- Bite raising appliance this is similar to a sports mouth guard and is worn mainly at night and can help by supporting the joint and surrounding muscles.
- Replace missing teeth to balance the bite or replace worn out dentures.
- Antidepressant therapy this does not mean that you are depressed but long standing pain can cause this. Like other chronic pain conditions such as migraine, it has been

found that some antidepressant medication is ideal for the treatment of TMD due to its muscle relaxing and pain killing effects. Importantly such drugs are not addictive.

Surgery – this is only carried out in a small number of cases. It may involve a steroid
injection into the joint, which can be done whilst awake, a manipulation of the joint
whilst you are asleep, or a washing out (arthrocentesis) of the joint. More rarely,
surgery can be performed with a mini telescope and in extreme cases it may be
necessary to open the joint and operate on the bones, cartilages and ligaments.

Physiotherapy

A self-management programme will be devised, with the aim of restoring normal movement and relieving pain via specific exercises, manual therapy, acupuncture or electrotherapy.

- Jaw joint and muscle exercises these are designed to help relax muscles or to encourage a displaced cartilage to resume its normal position. The best ones will have been discussed with you, but it is important to carry them out as instructed for them to be effective
- Acupuncture this can be very effective for some people in reducing pain, inflammation and muscle spasm. It works by stimulating natural pain relievers and anti-inflammatories in your body.

Contact information

If you are experiencing any problems, you can contact the Maxillo-Facial Unit telephone 01942 822487

The Department is open Monday to Friday 8am until 5pm.

Temporomandibular (Jaw) Joint Disorders	Page 5 of
Please use this space to write notes or reminders.	

Comments, Compliments or Complaints

The Patient Relations/Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) Department provides confidential on the spot advice, information and support to patients, relatives, friends, and carers.

Contact Us

Tel: 01942 822376 (Monday to Friday 9am until 4pm)

The Patient Relations/PALS Manager
Wrightington, Wigan and Leigh Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust
Royal Albert Edward Infirmary
Wigan Lane
Wigan
WN1 2NN

Ask 3 Questions

Become more involved in decisions about your healthcare. You may be asked to make choices about your treatment. To begin with, try to make sure you get the answers to three key questions:

- 1. What are my options?
- 2. What are the positives and negatives of each option for me?
- 3. How do I get support to help me make a decision that is right for me?



How We Use Your Information

For details on how we collect, use, and store the information we hold about you, please see patient information leaflet, Ref. **Corp 006** How we use your information, this can be found on the Patient Information Leaflets page on the Trust website, see details on the front cover.

This leaflet is also available in audio, large print, Braille, and other languages upon request. For more information, please ask in the department/ward.

© Wrightington, Wigan and Leigh Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. All rights reserved. Not to be reproduced in whole or in part without the permission of the copyright owner.

Call 111 first when it's less urgent than 999.



Phone: 0808 802 1212

Text: 81212

www.veteransgateway.org.uk

